
Sr.No

Sr. 

No.

Document 

Reference

Pag

e 

No Clause No Description in the EOI Clarification Sought

Additional 

Remarks (if 

any) NPCI response

1 1 EOI Doc. 9 3(a)

Chapter 3 Scope of work

a) An exclusive contiguous core data center area of 

3000 sq.ft with cage and exclusive access. Hosting 

area should be excluding pillar area, PDUs, PAHUs 

etc., if any present in the cage area. Access to the 

Data Centre area should have a biometric and face 

recognition access facility. The hosting area provided 

to NPCI should meet at least Tier 3 level DC 

facilities.

Request NPCI to consider the required rack space and 

cage areas only instead of mentioning minimum Sq.ft 

area No change

2 2 EOI Doc. 9 3(e)

Chapter 3 Scope of work

e) 24 x 7 x 365 operations area for 25 members with 

workstations facing the wall, place to install 

minimum 6 nos. of LCD 85” monitors within the Data 

Centre operation area premises for equipment 

monitoring and operations. One cabin with at least 5 

seated meeting room with 2 Invitation for Expression 

of Interest for Hiring space for setting up of new 

Data Centre on Colocation model.

Nos. of big storewel cupboard and 1 no storeroom. 

There should be space for setting up a video 

conferencing facility and fireproof safe. There should 

be a facility for a minimum of 4 data and 2 voice 

ports per workstation. The DC operations area should 

be in the same floor / building as the Data Centre.

The proposed facility already has central BMS/CCTV 

rooms to ensure 24x7 monitoring of the critical/non 

critical areas. We request NPCI to please reconsider 

the required seating area requirement/LED displays 

etc. as this would be not required logically. 

Also, request NPCI to provide flexibility on DC 

Operations area requirement, as in some cases it 

would not be possible to provide on same floor/same 

building. 

These workstations are required for 

NPCI DC NOC & Operations team. 

These teams need to have the 

monitoring dashboard w.r.to the 

NPCI servers

5 3 EOI Doc. 10

3. Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements:(a)

Chapter 3 Scope of work

Server and Network Racks Requirements:

a) The DCO should provide 42U standard racks 70 

Nos. scalable up to 200 Nos. Server racks of size 

600mm wide X 1200 mm depth X 2000 mm Height and 

network racks with 800mm wide X 1200 mm depth X 

2000 mm Height as and when required by NPCI on 

rental basis.

Noted. Please confirm the IT Load per rack and the 

circuit required (1 phase 32A or 3 phase 32A, or any 

other, please specify). 

8KW per rack with 3 phase 32 amps 

( Average 4 Kw)

6 4 EOI Doc. 11

3. Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements:(e)

Chapter 3 Scope of work

Server and Network Racks Requirements:

e) The Bidder should provide with automatic STS 

(Static Transfer Switch) wherever required inside the 

rack with dual inputs from both the feeds with 32A Please specify the required quantity of STS. 20 Nos. standard STS 

7 5 EOI Doc. 11 4.2 (2)

Chapter 4 Technical Details

4.2 Civil Requirements

2. A Minimum of 33 sq. ft. gross per rack should be 

considered while making any provisioning.

Request NPCI to confirm the reference and reason for 

33sq.ft per rack. This is NPCI standard practise

8 6 EOI Doc. 11 4.2 (5)

Chapter 4 Technical Details

4.2 Civil Requirements

5. False flooring should have a load bearing capacity 

of 2000 kg/sq m UDL.

As per global DC standards, 1500 KG/SQ.M can cater 

to high density rack loads. Request NPCI to confirm, 

if 1500 kg/sq.m is OK to consider? Yes,- Consider 1500KG/SQ.M

RESPONSES TO PRE - BID QUERIES -INVITATION FOR EXPRESSION OF INTEREST (EOI) – HIRING OF SPACE FOR SETTING UP OF NEW DATA CENTRE ON CO-LOCATION MODEL.



9 7 EOI Doc. 12 4.3 (12 i)

Chapter 4 Technical Details

4.3 Power Supply Requirements

12. Environmental Control/Protection:

i. Regular cleaning of server racks and devices inside 

racks at pre-defined and agreed intervals shall be 

carried out by the DCO at no extra cost to NPCI.

Deep cleaning of NPCI racks and devices shall be 

under NPCI scope, as the DCO can only access and 

consider cleaning of common areas. Agreed

10 8 EOI Doc. 12 4.4 (5)

Chapter 4 Technical Details

4.4 Security and Access Control

5. All equipment delivery and removal from the Data 

Centre shall be recorded and should be available for 

review by NPCI within six business hours.

The material access/removal logs pertaining to NPCI 

only can be made available. Your understanding is correct

11 9 EOI Doc. 13 4.4 (8)

Chapter 4 Technical Details

4.4 Security and Access Control

8. Video footage/backup of all relevant video 

cameras shall be made available to NPCI monthly at 

no extra cost.

The storage devices in which the back up shall be 

provided will be in NPCI scope. Your understanding is correct

12 10 EOI Doc. 13 4.5 (4)

Chapter 4 Technical Details

4.5 Network and Communication Facilities

4. The DCO agrees to provide necessary facilities to 

third party telecom providers or system integrator of 

NPCI or otherwise to extend their network links up to 

the NPCI hosting area at no extra cost to NPCI. 

However, NPCI will make payments to DCO for actual 

consumption of power by the telecom provider 

The cost factor related to this should be discussed 

mutually and agreed Accepted

13 11 EOI Doc. 13 4.6 (1)

Chapter 4 Technical Details

4.6 Service Levels

1. Data Centre uptime of 99.998% per year.

As per Tier 3 Standards, the DC Uptime recommended 

is 99.982, however, we can commit 99.99% SLA. 

Request NPCI to kindly confirm on the same. No change

14 12 EOI Doc. 13 4.6 (6)

Chapter 4 Technical Details

4.6 Service Levels

6. Fire drill reports, BMS audit reports and security 

reports shall be shared on a need basis with NPCI for 

These reports can be viewed at site and may be 

shared subject to internal approvals only. NPCI to 

kindly confirm on this. 

No change, it is already mentioned 

on need basis as per audit 

requirement.

15 13 EOI Doc. 14 4.7 (4)

Chapter 4 Technical Details

4.7 MIS Reports

4. Audit reports.

DCO audit reports shall be shared on need basis to 

comply with NPCI audit requirements.

We assume that the Audits will be limited to the 

services offered to you only and not otherwise. Kindly 

confirm

It will for NPCI, however, the 

facility can be audited with respect 

to the scope.

16 14 EOI Doc. 14 4.8 [c]

Chapter 4 Technical Details

4.8 Single Point of Contact (SPOC)

c. SPOC should hold monthly review meetings at NPCI 

Although we would try to be at NPCI office, request 

NPCI to allow the monthly review virtually as well. Agreed

17 15 EOI Doc. 14 4.9

Chapter 4 Technical Details

4.9 Data center space delivery timelines

The Data Centre space as per the scope of work and 

terms shall be handed over to NPCI within 4 weeks 

from the date of Purchase Order

Considering the scope of work mentioned in EOI, 

bidders will need at least 12 weeks time from date of 

LOA/PO to start delivering the services. Kindly 

request to change timelines as 12 weeks. 8 weeks

29 16 EOI Doc. 32 Annexure H

Annexure H Eligibility Criteria Response

A] Pre -Requisite Qualifications and compliance

10. DC facility shall cater to minimum 200 racks with 

expandability to accommodate another 200 racks on 

the same floor (overall 400 racks)

Declaration on company letter head along with 

supporting documents if asked for.

NPCI to share the timelines for additional 200 racks 

requirement along with IT load, accordingly we can 

check feasibility and reserve the space. 

1st Year : 120 racks, 2nd year: 80 

racks, 3rd year onwards 50 racks 

per year     



31 17 EOI Doc. 33 Annexure H

Annexure H Eligibility Criteria Response

A] Pre -Requisite Qualifications and compliance

14. DC facility shall be compliant with all 

registrations/ compliance as required by Govt of 

India from time to time including but not limited to 

CCOE license, PCB, CEIG, Building OC, Fire NOC, DG 

Emission tests, Carbon Emission per annum, etc.

Copy of certificate

Request to allow the bidders to submit a compliance 

in the form of a Self-Delcation signed by Authorized 

Signatory against the below mentioned confidentials 

information instead of "Copy of Certificate".

1. CCOE license

2. PCB

3. CEIG

4. Building OC

5. Fire NOC

6. DG Emission tests

7. Carbon Emission per annum

No change. Need to add CAMC of 

critical equipment with dates of 

expiry 

32 18 EOI Doc. 34 Annexure I Annexure I - Technical Specifications

This question is pertaining to the answers already 

found under 3rd and 4th columns (Details, 

Compliance status (Yes / No) )

We noticed that the answers are already there in EOI 

document for Sno. 3.5 to 8.9 in page no. 34 to 39. 

Bidder has to can make changes as 

per their capabilities and the 

facilites they are offering.

33 19 EOI Doc. 34 Annexure I

2.4. Whether False flooring have a load bearing 

capacity of 2000 kg/sq m UDL.

20000 kg / Sqm

Whether the bidders to consider 2000 or 20000 ? Also, 

as per global DC Standards 1500 Kg/Sq.m is enough 

for high density rack loads. NPCI to confirm on the 

same and request to changes this to 1500 Kg/Sq.m Refer Sr.No.8

34 20 EOI Doc. 35 Annexure I

3.11. What is the backup time of the UPS

The UPS Battery Back-Up is of 13 minutes

The backup time of UPS is 10 mins on full load. NPCI 

to confirm if this is OK. And request to kindly change 

this to 10min Please treat it as 10 Mins

35 21 EOI Doc. 35 Annexure I

3.14. Single line power/cooling & all other services 

diagram right up to to individual server rack/cage to 

be given for audit purpose / records (both Soft & 

Hard Copy)

SLD can be shared once the NDA is signed between 

both parties and subject to internal approvals. NPCI 

to kindly confirm on the same. NDA will provided

36 22 EOI Doc. 37 Annexure I

6.2. Whether the proposed facility contains a 

centralized NOC room to monitor the server farm 

and network links.

IDC – 24 x 7 Team take care of Infrastructure 

monitoring

We are assuming that this query is related to BMS 

and/or CCTV monitoring. Kindly confirm whether 

bidders to consider BMS instead of NOC Room. The DC 

facility has centralised BMS/CCTV rooms to monitor 

all critical parameters of the facility. 

NPCI  requirement is separate NOC 

room ( 25 seater is part of this 

requirement).

37 23 EOI Doc. 39 Annexure I

7.12. Incident Reporting within 15 mins for both SA, 

ST & NSA

This will be shared as per existing DC Process. Do 

clarify SA, ST @NSA Long form

Request to kindly elaborate the text given in this 

query with an explanation so that bidder can provide 

a precise answer

1. SA

2. ST

3. NSA

4. This will be shared as per existing DC Process

5. Do clarify SA, ST @NSA Long form To treated as removed.

38 24 EOI Doc. 39 Annexure I

8.12. How do you propose to support NPCI in future 

expansion of space and power

NPCI To confirm future requirement along with 

Request to kindly provide your indicative expansion 

plan along with timelines to confirm the feasibility. Refer Sr.No.29



39 25 EOI Doc. 40 Annexure I

8.25. Whether the Data Center space as per the 

scope of work and terms shall be handed over to 

NPCI within 4 weeks from the date of purchase 

order.

Considering the scope of work mentioned in EOI, 

bidders will need at least 12 weeks time from date of 

LOA/PO to start delivering the services. Kindly 

request to change timelines as 12 weeks. Please refer Sr.No.17

40 26 EOI Doc. 41 Annexure I

8.26. Whether a list of empaneled vendors for inter 

rack cabling and network cabling inside the server 

hall should be given along with the RFP quote. 

Alternatively, there is to be a rate contract fixed for 

material supply and labour / installation charges 

fixed for a period of minimum one year.

Bidders will need the complete scope of work for 

inter rack cabling. Request you to kindly share the 

complete details w.r.t inter rack cabling scope

NPCI will engage their own vendor 

for inter rack cabling.

41 27 EOI Doc. 41 Annexure I

8.27. Is the Data Center certified? If yes by EPI or 

UTI

Certification is in process and will be completed in 

Month time.

Copy of Certificate

Request to kindly elaborate the text given in this 

query with an explanation so that bidder can provide 

a precise answer

1. EPI

2. UTI

3. Certification is in process and will be completed 

in Month time

Please ignore the remarks 

mentioned in the column 3( 

details).

Please mention whether Bidder has 

EPI certification or UTI certification 

along with number (Tier III/Tier 

IV/Rated 3/ Rated4).

Please mention the compliance as 

42 28 EOI Doc. 41 Annexure I

8.32. Is the Data Center is Certified by DoT OSP 

services

Copy of Certificate

Request to kindly remove OSP requirement since this 

is not applicable to Data Center Colocation scope of 

work and the proposed Data Centre is not required 

OSP registration from DOT.

Note: OSP is only applicable to companies providing 

Treat it as removed.This will be 

covered in Corrigendum.

43 29 EOI Doc. 41 Annexure I

8.34. Data Center is Complied with CCOE license, 

PCB, CEIG, Building OC, Fire NOC, DG Emission tests, 

Carbon Emission per annum

Copy of Certificates

Request to allow the bidders to submit a compliance 

in the form of a Self-Delcation signed by Authorized 

Signatory against the below mentioned confidentials 

information instead of "Copy of Certificate ".

1. CCOE license

2. PCB

3. CEIG

4. Building OC

5. Fire NOC

6. DG Emission tests

7. Carbon Emission per annum Refer Sr.No. 31

44 30 EOI Doc. 41 Annexure I

9. Presentations, Interview, Discussions, Visits, 

Brochures

Kindly clarify what is expected to respond against this 

line item. Kindly elaborate or explain what is 

required from the bidders against each item shown 

below.

1. Presentations

2. Interview

3. Discussions

4. Visits

5. Brochures

The DCO has to make presentation 

of the capabilites and share the 

brochures and complete details. 

NPCI shall visit the sites proposed.



45 31 EOI Doc. 42 Annexure J

Annexure J - Team Profile

(Bidder’s Letter Head)

Bidder needs to provide details for each key team 

member working in the Data Centre from their side 

with complete technical qualifications and expertise.

Name:

Technical Qualification

Position in the firm:

Total years of post-qualification work experience:

Total No. of years with the firm:

Brief Introduction:

Areas of expertise and no. of years of experience in 

this area:

Request to allow the bidders to submit the masked 

resource information

Can mask the person name. The 

successful bidder need to share 

before deploying.

46 32 Chapter 3 / Scope of work10 g

Connectivity is required for monitoring purposes 

between the Data Center area and the

operations area. The Data Centre Operator (DCO) is 

responsible for providing connectivity.

What type of connectivity is required from the data 

center area and the operations area? (e.g. 24core SMF)

NPCI will establish on its own only 

route provisioning.

47 33 Chapter 3 / Scope of work10 i

NPCI has its own exclusive service providers. 

Permission should be granted for MUX placement, 

termination of links and for internal connectivity to 

these service providers at no extra cost to NPCI.

Will these MUXs be placed inside NPCI’s cage.  If so, is 

the space accounted for these telco racks within the 

3000sq.ft MUX is not part of 3000sq ft. 

48 34 Chapter 3 / Scope of work10 j

The LAN connectivity between the service providers’ 

MUX to NPCI network has to be provided

with rack space by DCO.

This indicates a cross connect or an inter-rack 

cabling.  Would NPCI require a separate rack as a 

network MDF within their cage.  Or is the rack space 

indicating a patch panel at the top of the rack in 

each cabinet/rack.

NPCI will assess and 

decide.However, LAN connecivity 

lies with DCO.

49 35 Chapter 3 / Scope of work10 e

Can NPCI please clarify the following for the overall 

additional space to be split between 3 rooms-

1. 25 member operations room facing wall, with wall 

space to accommodate 6nos of 85" LCD monitors, 

printers and other IT accessories

2. A second cabin (with a separate entrance) to 

accommodate a minimum 5 seats, 2 nos of storewell 

cupboard

3. An additional store room with separate entrance 

about 100sq.ft space?

Yes we require 3 rooms. One for 

NOC, one room for meeting room 

and one store room in the same 

vicinity.

50 36 Chapter 3 / Scope of work10 e Is the DCO expected to provide the LCD monitors? No

51 37 Chapter 3 / Scope of work10 k

There should not be restriction or costs raised for 

placement of antenna / dish or wireless equipment 

on terrace

How many dish/antenna NPCI intends to install?  

What are the dimensions and weight of these 

antennas. What is the power and cabling requirement 

for these antennas?

It will be decided with succesful 

bidder. But the bidder has to 

accommodate NPCI requirement.

52 38 Chapter 3 / Scope of work10 n

Lockable full size storewel cupboards as storage 

space for keeping files, CDs, etc. shall be supplied Yes

53 39 Chapter 3 / Scope of work10 t

The DCO must provide the Data backup for the 

access control for 90 Days period regularly in the 

electronically storable device

Is this for biometric access in NPCI’s DC area/cage 

only?

Biommetric access for NPCI area is 

mandatory.

Other physical security will be 

checked.

24 x 7 x 365 operations area for 25 members with 

workstations facing the wall, place to install 

minimum 6 nos. of LCD 85” monitors within the Data 

Centre operation area premises for equipment 

monitoring and operations. One cabin with at least 5 

seated meeting room with 2Nos. of big storewel 

cupboard and 1 no storeroom. There should be space 

for setting up a video conferencing facility and 

fireproof safe. There should be a facility for a 

minimum of 4 data and2 voice ports per workstation. 

The DC operations area should be in the same floor / 

building as

the Data Centre.



54 40 Server and Network Rack requirements 10 a

The DCO should provide 42U standard racks 70 Nos. 

scalable up to 200 Nos. Server racks of size 600mm 

wide X 1200 mm depth X 2000 mm Height and 

network racks with 800mmwide  X 1200 mm depth X 

2000 mm Height as and when required by NPCI on 

rental basis

How many server racks (600x1200x2000mm) and how 

many network racks (800x1200x2000mm) are 

required?  Does NPCI require any other additional 

components like cable managers, rack PDUs etc?

Server racks (600x1200x2000mm) - 

50 Nos.

Network racks (800x1200x2000mm) - 

20Nos.

Yes we  require other additional 

components like cable managers, 

rack PDUs etc.

55 41 Server and Network Rack requirements 11 c

The 42U server rack should be compatible with most 

server manufacturer’s equipment including Dell, HP, 

IBM, Sun etc. and have suitable cable management 

options on both sides. 

Does this mean standard Vertical cable Managers.  

Are these special equipment that would need wider 

than 800mm racks? No special equipment required.

56 42 Server and Network Rack requirements 11 d

All racks shall have lockable perforated doors at the 

back and the front with minimum 16 gauge thickness; 

partition shelves should be available. Cabling to each 

rack should be bus bar trunking system with track 

way bus arrangement. How many partition shelves required per rack? All rack side panels required.

57 43 Server and Network Rack requirements 11 e

The Bidder should provide with automatic STS (Static 

Transfer Switch) wherever required inside the rack 

with dual inputs from both the feeds with 32A 

capacity for equipment having single power supply

Is there a model of ASTS that NPCI is looking for?  Are 

these required for every rack? 20 Nos. standard  STS. 

58 44 Server and Network Rack requirements 11 g

Each power distribution unit (iPDU) inside the rack 

should provide 32A dual output sockets either single 

phase or Three phase

What is the mix of single phase and three phase 

racks? How many single phase and how many three 

phase circuits/PDUs are required?  

The requirement is 3 phase for all 

racks of 8Kw.

59 45

Chapter 4 : 

Technical 

Details

4.2 Civil 

Requirements 11 2

A Minimum of 33 sq. ft. gross per rack should be 

considered while making any provisioning

Is this 33sq.ft the average space around a rack 

including the Hot aisle and cold aisle (that would be 

common for 2 racks)? Your understanding is correct

60 46

Chapter 4 : 

Technical 

Details

4.2 Civil 

Requirements 11 3

The load bearing capacity of the Data Centre should 

be 1500 sq m.

Is this for the data hall area or does it includes all 

common areas in the DC. Is the response expected in 

kg/sq.m? Enitre DC areas 

61 47 4.3 Power Supply requirements11 1 Dual power feed of 8 KW is required for each rack

Is the 8kw rated power or consumed power ?  Also, 

this is in deviation from the table in Annexure-1 

Technical specifications (pg.34) which mentions 6kva 

rated power for each rack

There was typo error. Please treat 

this as 8 Kw.This will be covered in 

Corrigendum.

62 48 4.3 Power Supply requirements11 3

Each power feed should be fed by an independent 

limit breaker. Does this indicate a floor RPP or equivalent? Yes

63 49 4.3 Power Supply requirements11 10

Power cables should be laid and power provision on 

to racks to be provided by DCO within 2 hours to 12 

hours on request by NPCI.

 Is this for any additional racks within the phase 1 

deployment that will be incrementally added (within 

the total of 70 racks)? Yes

64 50 4.3 Power Supply requirements12 12.h

There should be no impediments to high density 

implementation within the data centre?

 What is the maximum power (high density) that NPCI 

envisages?   How many racks in that power range? 8KW 



65 51

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 9

Chapter 3 Scope of 

Work, Point a)

An exclusive contiguous core data center area of 

3000 Sq.ft. with cage and exclusive access (Exclusing 

Pillars, PDU, PAHU, etc.)

In subsequent sections, it is mentioned that 

contiguous space for 200 Racks shall be provided, also 

there should be space for additional 200 Racks. 

Please change - Exclusive space for 200 Racks with 

additional capacity in same facility/ campus (less 

than 500 meter distance) shall be available

It is initially starting with 70 to 80 

Nos. of racks and scalable upto 200 

Racks.

66 52

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 10

Chapter 4 - 4.3 - 12 

e) Temprature to be maintained 22 +/- 2 degree 

All IT equipment now support higher tempratures 

(upto 27 degree celsius). The same should be allowed 

to have better PUE for the setup  thereby saving 

power No change

67 53

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 10

Chapter 3 Scope of 

work

s) Power Consumed by the equipment placed at the 

Data Centre shall be charged to NPCI for a

minimum consumption of 120 kW and thereafter at 

actual as per agreed rate and additional power

consumption certified by NPCI officer.

Please clarify the clause for power consumption 

billing 120 KW committed.

68 54

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 10

Chapter 3

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements (a)

The DCO should provide 42U standard racks 70 Nos. 

scalable up to 200 Nos. Server racks

of size 600mm wide X 1200 mm depth X 2000 mm 

Height and network racks with 800mm

wide X 1200 mm depth X 2000 mm Height as and 

when required by NPCI on rental basis.

Request to please share the bifurcation of the server 

& network racks for day 1 requirement :

Server racks: 600 x 1200mm x 42U Qty?

Network Racks: 800 x 1200mm x 42U Qty?

 Server racks (600x1200x2000mm) - 

50 Nos.

Network racks (800x1200x2000mm) - 

20Nos.

Yes we  require other additional 

components like cable managers, 

rack PDUs etc.

69 55

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 10

Chapter 3

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements

a) The DCO should provide 42U standard racks 70 

Nos. scalable up to 200 Nos.

As per our understanding, NPCI will be using 70 Racks 

on Day 1 and wants reservation for 130 Racks.

Please share the rampup plan i.e. balance 130 Rack 

deployement timeline

In due course of time it will be 

informed.

70 56

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 11 & 34

Chapter 3

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements

4.3 Dual Power feed of 8 KW is required for each 

rack.

3.1 Whether Dual power feed of 6 KVA (rated) is

provided for each rack.

Please confirm the rated power requirement for each 

Rack is 8 kW OR 6KVA. On page number 11 of the EOI 

per rack requirement mentioned as 8 kW Refer Sr.No.64 

71 57

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 11

Chapter 3

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements (h)

Racks should be with dual iPDU units connected to 

separate input power from two separate UPS units. 

The iPDU should be 32A 1Ph/ 3Ph PDU

Request to please share the bifurcation of the 1 

Phase & 3 Phase PDU requirement

Also, we monitor and provide power consumption at 

rack level through our floor PDU, Intelligent PDUs will 

increase the cost per rack, hence request to consider 

standard PDU at rack level All the 3 Phase IPDUs. No change.

72 58

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 34

Annexure I - 

Technical 

Specifications

2.4 Whether False flooring have a load bearing

capacity of 2000 kg/sq m UDL. 20000 kg / Sqm

For dense IT load, the acceptable false floor load 

bearing capacity should be 1500 Kg/ Sq.m UDL. Kindly 

consider the same Refer Sr.No.8



73 59

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 14

Chapter 5 

Definition and 

Eligibility Criteria 

for Bidders  - Point 

10 

DC facility shall cater to minimum 200 racks with 

expandability to accommodate another 200 racks on 

the same floor (overall 400 racks)

Kindly modify this to 200 + 200 (expansion) Racks 

within the same building/ campus (in vicinity of less 

than 500 Meters) No change

74 60

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 15

Chapter 5 

Definition and 

Eligibility Criteria 

for Bidders - Point 

7 

Land and Building shall not have been mortgaged by 

Bidder as on date

Datacenter is a capital intensive business, generally 

the facilities are mortaged to fuel further capacity 

expansion of facilities by datacenter operators. The 

clause should be removed as bidder's credibility/ 

sustainability is ensured through turnover and 

profitability covered in Point 3 no change

75 61

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 15

Chapter 5 

Definition and 

Eligibility Criteria 

for Bidders - Point 

5.2/8

The bidder shall have a minimum total raised floor 

space of 50,000 sq. ft. including all the DCs operated 

by the bidder in Mumbai, Navi Mumbai.

To gauge operational capability, the clause should 

be changed as :

The bidder shall have time bound plan (With 

ownership of land and power sanctions) of minimum 

total raised floor space of 50,000 sq. ft. including all 

the DCs planned and operated by the bidder in 

Mumbai, Navi Mumbai.

OR

The bidder & its merging partner shall have a 

minimum total raised floor space of 50,000 sq. ft. 

including all the DCs operated by the bidder across 

their operational facilities worldwide. no change

77 62

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 9

Chapter 3 Scope of 

work

24 x 7 x 365 operations area for 25 members with 

workstations facing the wall, place to install 

minimum 6 nos. of LCD 85” monitors within the Data 

Centre operation area premises for equipment 

monitoring and operations. One cabin with at least 5 

seated meeting room with 2 Nos. of big storewel 

cupboard and 1 no storeroom. There should be space 

for setting up a video conferencing facility and 

fireproof safe. There should be a facility for a 

minimum of 4 data and 2 voice ports per 

workstation. The DC operations area should be in the 

same floor / building as the Data Centre.

Seating space recommended to be at a safe distance 

away from Data Hall. 

Requesting to consider it within the same campus (for 

minimum unwanted people movement in the critical 

DC area)

Only 2-3 people per shift should have access to data 

hall No change

78 63

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 10

Chapter 3 Scope of 

work

k) There should not be restriction or costs raised for 

placement of antenna / dish or wireless equipment 

on terrace.

What's is the dimension of antenna/dish and what is 

the acceptable distance between antenna/dish and 

data hall

will be mutually discussed with 

successful bidder

79 64

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 10

Chapter 3 Scope of 

work

l) The data center should be in and around Mumbai, 

Navi Mumbai and Pune.

We have DCs in Navi Mumbai & Pune. Is there any 

preferance for availability of DC in Pune or Navi 

Mumbai Mumbai/Navi Mumbai only



81 65

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 34

Annexure I - 

Technical 

Specifications

2.2.1 - Civil 

Requirements

Whether a minimum of 33 sq. ft gross area/ rack 

should be considered while making any provisioning.

25 Sqft is enough for 8/6 kW Rating Racks. Kindly 

change accordingly no change

82 66

Chapter 3 Scope 

of work 9 a

An exclusive contiguous core data center area of 

3000 sq.ft with cage and exclusive access. Hosting 

area should be excluding pillar area, PDUs, PAHUs 

etc., if any present in the cage area. Access to the 

Data Centre area should have a biometric and face 

recognition access facility. The hosting area provided 

to NPCI should meet at least Tier 3 level DC 

facilities.

As requiremnet 

if of 330 Racks - 

we propose 

high density 

rack may be 

single rack with 

12-18 KVA 

power - This 

will help to 

reduce  count 

of racks & 

optimise space No change

83 67

Chapter 3 Scope 

of work 9 b

Individual Server & Network racks should be provided 

(if required by NPCI) and the area made ready before 

occupation, with dual power inputs from 

independent power sources. Power to the racks 

should be supplied within 2 hours of intimation by 

the concerned NPCI official. No change

84 68

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements 10 a

The DCO should provide 42U standard racks 70 Nos. 

scalable up to 200 Nos. Server racks 

of size 600mm wide X 1200 mm depth X 2000 mm 

Height and network racks with 800mm 

wide X 1200 mm depth X 2000 mm Height as and 

when required by NPCI on rental basis. Please refer 

Kindly confirm 

1. Total Number of Racks required.

We understand the day 1 requirement is 70 racks.

We understand the Day 2 requirement is 130 racks 

scalable upto  330 racks

2. Dimensions of Rack (Height x Width x Depth)- 42 U 

height. 

Please confirm Server rack (600mm x1200mm ) Qty 

Day1 and Day2.

Please confirm Network rack (800mm x1200mm ) Qty 

Day1 and Day2.

3. Please confirm the Rackwise  Nameplate Rated 

capacity in KVA. - 6 KVA or 8 KVA?

 3.  Total IT Name plate Rated Power Capacity- Day1 

and Day2 requirement 

4.  Can the future expansion Rack space requirement 

of Day 2 (330)  to be considered in the same floor or 

can be proposed to other floor/Building in the same 

premises.

6. Interrack Cabling - Kindly confirm SOW/Port 

mapping & Approved Makes  for Interrack Cabeling for 

us to work on Design Solution and commercials.

8. NPCI will require 3phase 32 amps Power circuit and 

iPDU for 8 KVA nameplated rated capacity Rack- &   

NPCI will require 1phase 32 amps Power circuit and 

iPDU for 6 KVA nameplated rated capacity Rack-Pls 

confirm this meets your requirement

9. Request  to replace per Rack sq ft of 33 sq.ft and 

the space requirement of 3000 sq ft, beacuse &  since 

NPCI requires end result of  ample movement for 

space & can specify instead as : rack space sufficient 

space of 1200mm  each for Hot and cold aisle and 

1200mm for free movement at the start  and end of 

the each Rack Row should be provisioned in server 

cage area. Final rack layout will be subject to 



85 69

Chapter 3 Scope 

of work 10 i

NPCI has its own exclusive service providers. 

Permission should be granted for MUX placement, 

termination of links and for internal connectivity to 

these service providers at no extra cost to NPCI.

As a carrier-neutral data center provider, we 

maintain an open and unbiased approach. We 

welcome all licensed service providers to deliver 

their services within our data centers. Our 

infrastructure is designed to accommodate a diverse 

range of connectivity options, ensuring that clients 

can seamlessly connect to the carriers of their 

choice. 

1. ISP/Telco will have to Colocate at chargeable basis 

in the DCO MMR room. If NPCI requires the ISP Fiber 

can be terminated in the NPCI Rack and NPCI can 

have multiple Cross connects within its cage area.

2. Any telecom  provider allowed to  extend link up 

to MMR Room within its existing MUX Rack or colocate 

within our MMR at applicable charges to DCP.

3. Cross connect from this MMR on chargeable basis 

will be delivered to NPCI to extend the ISP links by 

DCO.

We can also 

provide 

internet 

bandwidth with 

Ddos mitigation 

+ Burstable + 

BGP routed 

bandwidth with 

high avilability. 

This will help 

to provide 

seamless 

connectivity 

and been used 

by Core 

Banking no change

86 70

Chapter 3 Scope 

of work 10 j

The LAN connectivity between the service providers’ 

MUX to NPCI network has to be provided with rack 

space by DCO.

ISP/Telco will have to Colocate at chargeable basis in 

the DCO MMR room. If NPCI requires the ISP Fiber can 

be terminated in the NPCI Rack and NPCI can have 

multiple Cross connects within its cage area. No change

87 71

Chapter 3 Scope 

of work 10 k

There should not be restriction or costs raised for 

placement of antenna / dish or wireless equipment 

on terrace.

Cost will be applicable for Space and Duct charges for 

placement of antenna / dish or wireless equipment 

on terrace. Customer to share the Device details 

along with dimensions and Power requirement, Cable 

type and rating. Based on Above details One time 

charges and Annual recurrign charges shall be 

applicable. Please refer Sr.No.78

88 72

Chapter 3 Scope 

of work 10 s

Power Consumed by the equipment placed at the 

Data Centre shall be charged to NPCI for a minimum 

consumption of 120 and thereafter at actual as per 

agreed rate and additional power consumption 

certified by NPCI officer.

Please confirm our understanding : Commercial Line 

item for a minimum consumption of 120kW in the 

colocation charges and any consumption above 120kW 

thereafter at actual as per agreed rate and additional 

power consumption certified by NPCI officer. your understanding is correct

89 73

Chapter 3 Scope 

of work 10 t

The DCO must provide the Data backup for the 

access control for 90 Days period regularly in the 

electronically storable device.

Please confirm NPCI shall provision electronically 

storage devise or the same to be provisioned by DCO. 

Also confirm the same  electronically storage devise 

shall reused for transferring data to NPCI storage. Yes

90 74

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements 11 d

Cabling to each rack should be bus bar trunking  

system with track way bus arrangement.

We propose to provision Power circuits from the DC 

Floor PDU with BCPM and the circuits will be 

extended from here to the Rack level underfloor thru 

diverse path thru Copper cables. Kindly confirm the 

above meets your requirement. No change



91 75

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements: 11 e

The Bidder should provide with automatic STS (Static 

Transfer Switch) wherever required inside  the rack 

with dual inputs from both the feeds with 32A 

capacity for equipment having single  power supply.

We will provision  ATS  of 1 Ph 32 amps Rating and  

client to confirm on Numbers required since the same 

will have to be captured in our Pricing for 

procurement of the ATS and also for provisioning of 

Circuits if required. If Qtys Not available, client to 

finalise the Unit Rate. Please refer Sr.No.6

92 76

Chapter 4 

Technical 

Details

4.2 Civil 

Requirements 11 4.2.2

A Minimum of 33 sq. ft. gross per rack should be 

considered while making any provisioning.

Request  to replace per Rack sq ft of 33 sq.ft beacuse 

NPCI requires end result of  ample movement for 

space & can specify instead as : rack space sufficient 

space of 1200mm  each for Hot and cold aisle and 

1200mm for free movement at the start  and end of 

the each Rack Row should be provisioned in server 

cage area. Final rack layout will be subject to 

approval by the client." No change

93 77

Chapter 4 

Technical 

Details

4.2 Civil 

Requirements 11 4.2.3

The load bearing capacity of the Data Centre should 

be 1500 sq m.

Please our understanding the clause to be read as : 

Floor loading capacity - 1500 KG/ Sqmtr and not as 

1500 sqm. Please refer Sr.No.8

94 78

4.3 Power 

Supply 

Requirements 11 4.3.1 Dual power feed of 8 KW is required for each rack. 

NPCI to confirm the circuit required for the 1A+ 1B 

dual feed in a Rack. We recommend any rating above 

6kva should opt for 63 AMP single phase for 8 kVA and 

upto 12 kVA. Anything above shpuld be 32 amps three 

phase.- Kindly confirm the circuit required for 8KW 

Rack. 32A 3phase - 8Kw

95 79

4.3 Power 

Supply 

Requirements 11 4.3.4

Should ensure N+1 Transformer redundancy, N+1 

Generator redundancy, N+1 UPS Redundancy, 

Parallel redundant operation.

 We are proposing Transformer redundancy- N+N, DG 

set redundancy -N+N, N+N UPS with 10 min battery 

backup on each Source, Parallel redundant UPS. 

Kindly confirm this meets & exceed your 

requirement. We recommend NPCI to maintain the 

N+N redundancy in the RFP since NPCI Uptime 

availability is very critical to the nation. your understanding is correct

96 80

4.3 Power 

Supply 

Requirements 11 4.3.6

The data center should monitor power usage on a per 

client basis to ensure that it does 

not reach dangerously high levels. The bidder should 

bill for the actual amount of power 

used with a minimum bill for 120KW

We meet this requirement as a standard we propose 

DC Floor PDU with BCPM.We propose to provision 

Power circuits from the DC Floor PDU with BCPM and 

the circuits will be extended from here to the Rack 

level underfloor thru diverse path thru Copper 

cables. Kindly confirm the above meets your 

requiremen No change

97 81

Environmental 

Control/Protecti

on 12 4.3.12. a

The Data Centre facility shall have gas-based fire 

suppression system like with pre-active dry pipe 

water fire suppression system (E.g. NOVEC).

NPCI to confirm the requirement here and its 

recommed solution requirement. Since the 

requirement mentions options from water based to 

Gas suppression based. NOVEC



98 82

Environmental 

Control/Protecti

on 12 4.3.12. e

Temperature, humidity and static control shall be in 

place. Temperature shall be kept 

at 22 degrees Celsius. ± 2 degrees Celsius. Humidity 

shall be between 50% with ± 5% 

to avoid static electricity. Air Conditioning system 

should provide 24x7 cooling and 

humidity control with redundancy in case of break 

down. Proper monitoring of these 

parameters should be done and maintained for audit 

purposes for NPCI. 

The RH and Temprature will mainatined as per 

ASHRAE TC 9.9 guidelines on Temperatures & 

Tolerance levels & correcponding Non Condensing 

RH. Request NPCI to maintain the Standards 

recommended by ASHRAE and include the same in the 

RFP for both Temp & RH. No change

99 83

4.4 Security and 

Access Control 13 4.4.8

Video footage/backup of all relevant video cameras 

shall be made available to NPCI 

monthly at no extra cost.

24 / 7 CCTV surveillance-90 days online recording 

shall be kept on Ctrls server. NPCI shall  provide Hard 

disk media to take the recordings from Ctrls. Kindly 

confirm our understanding is correct. your understanding is correct

100 84

4.5 Network and 

Communication 

Facilities 13 4.5.1

The Data Centre Facility proposed should be 

equipped with CAT-6A and Fibre cables 

with structured cabling facility.

Structured Cabling  will be done as per 

scope agreed  PORT Mapping sign off with applicable 

line item wise BOM Based commercial. Kindly confirm yes

101 85

4.5 Network and 

Communication 

Facilities 13 4.5.4

The DCO agrees to provide necessary facilities to 

third party telecom providers or system 

integrator of NPCI or otherwise to extend their 

network links up to the NPCI hosting area 

at no extra cost to NPCI. However, NPCI will make 

payments to DCO for actual

consumption of power by the telecom provider 

equipment.

As a carrier-neutral data center provider, we 

maintain an open and unbiased approach. We 

welcome all licensed service providers to deliver 

their services within our data centers. Our 

infrastructure is designed to accommodate a diverse 

range of connectivity options, ensuring that clients 

can seamlessly connect to the carriers of their 

choice. 

1. ISP/Telco will have to Colocate at chargeable basis 

in the DCO MMR room. If NPCI requires the ISP Fiber 

can be terminated in the NPCI Rack and NPCI can 

have multiple Cross connects within its cage area.

2. Any telecom  provider allowed to  extend link up 

to MMR Room within its existing MUX Rack or colocate 

within our MMR at applicable charges to DCP.

3. Cross connect from this MMR on chargeable basis 

will be delivered to NPCI to extend the ISP links by 

DCO. No change

102 86

4.6 Service 

Levels 13 4.6.1 Data Centre uptime of 99.998% per year

Considering the Critical services of National 

importance provided by NPCI we recommend to to 

include in RFP a higher availability Uptime of 99.995% 

or above. No change

103 87

4.9 Data center 

space delivery 

timelines 14 4.9

Data center space delivery timelines 

The Data Centre space as per the scope of work and 

terms shall be handed over to NPCI within 

4 weeks from the date of Purchase Order

Considering the complete scope of works involved to 

request NPCI to re-evaluate the delivery timelines to 

12 Weeks from the PO date 8 weeks



104 88

Chapter 5 

Definition and 

Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 15 5.2.10

DC facility shall cater to minimum 200 racks  with 

expandability to accommodate another  200 racks on 

the same floor (overall 400  racks)

Kindly confirm the Total phase wise expansion within 

same floor by NPCI and the reservation period for the 

Total 400 Racks. Since reservation charges will be 

applicable for contigous Rack space provisioning of 

400 Racks on same & songle floor.

Will be shared with successful 

bidder.

105 89

Chapter 5 

Definition and 

Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 15 5.2.13

DC facility shall be Tier IV/ Tier III certified by 

Uptime Institute or rated 4/rated 3 by TIA 942 or 

equivalent, pls specify

We shall propose our  EPI certified  Rated 4 DC  

complying TIA 942 guidelines  at Navi Mumbai Mahape 

to accommodate Rack Colocation space, operation 

area and seating cabin. ok

106 90

Annexure I - 

Technical 

Specifications 34 2.4

Whether False flooring have a load bearing  capacity 

of 2000 kg/sq m UDL. Details- 20000 kg / Sqm 

Kindly confirm our understanding that its to be read 

as  2000KG/sqm and not  20000Kg/sqmt Please refer Sr.No.8

107 91

Network and 

Communication 

Facilities 37 6.2

Whether the proposed facility contains a centralized 

NOC room to monitor the server farm and network 

links.

We have the services. Since the Network links will be 

directly Terminated in NPCI cage or in the MMR Room 

MUX of the ISP DCO will not have any access to the 

Network. If the Network Management services is part 

of the RFP & Scope then the same can be monitored 

as per Declared SOW by NPCI. Currently EOI is 

spefically for Colocation only. NPCI needs separate NOC room.

108 92

Annexure I - 

Technical 

Specifications 39 7.12

Incident Reporting within 15 mins for both  SA, ST & 

NSA Do clarify  SA, ST  & NSA Long  form. Treat it as deleted/removed.

109 93

Annexure I - 

Technical 

Specifications 40 8.23

What are managed services available by  default 

(without additional cost)?

Basic Shared RHS support of Monthly 5 hours/ Ticket 

is available as default for the cage area or client. 

Additional are on  chargeable basis shall be 

provisioned basis SOW shared by NPCI. ok

110 94

Annexure I - 

Technical 

Specifications 40 8.25

Whether the Data Center space as per the scope of 

work and terms shall be handed over to NPCI within 4 

weeks from the date of purchase order.

Considering the SOW & total deliverables we request 

NPCI to accept Early Access 12 Weeks from the Date 

of PO & Layout approvals and Final Handover in 14 

weeks. Please refer Sr.No.17

111 95

Annexure I - 

Technical 

Specifications 41 8.26

Whether a list of empaneled vendors for  inter rack 

cabling and network cabling  inside the server hall 

should be given along  with the RFP quote. 

Alternatively, there is  to be a rate contract fixed for 

material  supply and labour / installation charges  

fixed for a period of minimum one year.

We have empaneled vendors for structural cabling 

end to end works and we can provide the comple 

Design  solution & certification basis the Port 

mapping & SOW from NPCI.

Our approved OEM: Commscope Systemax Panduit 

NPCI will engage its own bidder for 

structured cabling.

112 96 EOI 9 Chapter 3 Scope of work Clause. A

An exclusive contiguous core data center area of 

3000 sq.ft with cage and exclusive access. Hosting 

area should be excluding pillar area, PDUs, PAHUs 

etc., 

Need more clarity over space area , this clause 

applicable for  70 rack requirement day 1 or same 

shall be applicable over scalability of racks also. Need 

clarification . For scalability

113 97 9 Chapter 3 Scope of work Clause. A

Access to the Data Centre area should have a 

biometric and face recognition access facility. The 

hosting area provided to NPCI should meet at least 

Tier 3 level DC facilities. 

For access control we have only 2FA(Smart card + 

Biometric) in proposed facility . Hope this is fine . 

Kindly Confirm . Accepted



114 98 EOI 10 Chapter 3 Scope of work Clause. K

There should not be restriction or costs raised for 

placement of antenna / dish or wireless equipment 

on terrace. 

We need clarity on this as if this is mandatory . We 

are fine with roof top uses basis on technical 

feasibility . However cost shall be applicable if size of 

the antenna or dish is substantively large . Please erefer Sr. No.51

115 99 EOI 10 Chapter 3 .Scope of work Clause S

Power Consumed by the equipment placed at the 

Data Centre shall be charged to NPCI for a minimum 

consumption of 120 and thereafter at actual as per 

agreed rate and additional power consumption 

certified by NPCI officer. 

We request for clarification or power mention 120 KW 

, is it rated power or consumed power.  Kindly 

clarify. Consumed Power

116 100 EOI 10 Chapter 3 Scope of work Clause. T

The DCO must provide the Data backup for the 

access control for 90 Days period regularly in the 

electronically storable device 

Please clarify who will provide the  electronically 

storable device . Kindly clarify. NPCI

117 101 EOI 10 Chapter 3 Scope of work Clause. O

Telephone lines for each workstation and cabins with 

restricted STD/ISD facility should be provided. Any 

telecom service provider should be allowed access to 

provide their equipment for landline setup, at no 

extra cost to NPCI. NPCI will pay only the PRI line 

charges incurred monthly/periodically on actual 

basis. 

We does not provide telephone lines, However is the 

same are mandatory , same can be arranged on 

request basis with additional commercial as 

applicable . Kindly accept and confirm . No change

118 102 EOI 10 Chapter 3 Scope of work Clause P

Minimum 90 access cards should be provided. In case 

of project phase requirements on a temporary basis, 

this number can be exceeded. 

We shall provide 25 no's card on temporary basis as 

per the total no seating space asked in EOI , providing 

more cards will add to the   security risks to the DC 

facility . Request to NPCI to asses the actual no of 

card require and Kindly confirm   . No change

119 103 EOI 10 Server and Network Racks Requirements:  clause a

The DCO should provide 42U standard racks 70 Nos. 

scalable up to 200 Nos. Server racks of size 600mm 

wide X 1200 mm depth X 2000 mm Height and 

network racks with 800mm wide X 1200 mm depth X 

2000 mm Height as and when required by NPCI on 

rental basis. 

We request for bifurcation of racks as per the total 

no of server racks and total no of network racks . 

Further, our understanding on the rental requirement 

of racks is for supplying the physical racks  on 

monthly or annual basis hope our understanding is 

correct . Request for more clarification & 

confirmation.  Please refer Sr.No.29

120 104 EOI 11 Server and Network Racks Requirements:  clause c

The 42U server rack should be compatible with most 

server manufacturer’s equipment including Dell, HP, 

IBM, Sun etc. and have suitable cable management 

options on both sides. 

We seek for rack specification if any specific 

requirement is there considering the OEM 

manufacture . Kindly furnish . Match all the best standards

121 105 EOI 11 Server and Network Racks Requirements:  clause i

The Bidder should provide with automatic STS (Static 

Transfer Switch) wherever required inside the rack 

with dual inputs from both the feeds with 32A 

capacity for equipment having single power supply. 

We request for total bifurcation of racks where STS 

require. Kindly furnish . Please refer Sr.No.57

122 106 EOI 11 Server and Network Racks Requirements:  clause c

The Bidder should permit and accommodate other 

racks accompanying the servers of NPCI. 

Need more clarity over racks (qty & exact dimension 

).Kindly furnish . Please refer Sr.No.29



123 107 EOI 10 Chapter 3 Scope of work:  clause i

NPCI has its own exclusive service providers. 

Permission should be granted for MUX placement, 

termination of links and for internal connectivity to 

these service providers at no extra cost to NPCI. 

Proposed facility is 100 % carrier neutral and all the 

new telecom service provide are most welcome to 

deploy their racks and serve any customer .However 

all the current telco providers have the current 

commercial arrangements with We for deploying 

their Mux's in the MMR . Hope this is fine  kindly 

accept and confirm . Ok

124 108 EOI 15 5.2 Eligibility Criteria for Bidders : point 9

DC facility shall have minimum 2 Mux from different 

telecom service provider (TCL and Airtel are 

mandatory) 

Proposed facility is 100 % carrier neutral. However , 

facility have telecom service providers Light storm & 

Airtel.and any new service provide is. Ost welcome to 

deploy their racks and serve new customer .Hope this 

is fine  kindly accept and confirm . ok

125 109 EOI 15 5.2 Eligibility Criteria for Bidders : point 10

DC facility shall cater to minimum 200 racks with 

expandability to accommodate another 200 racks on 

the same floor (overall 400 racks) 

As per the EOI scalability mention in one clause 200 

racks and here mention total 400 racks , We would 

like to clarify the exact  scalability in same campus 

along with the time frame .Kindly furnish. 

Proposed facility have 160 racks space at single floor 

and another 200 racks space on other floor in same 

campus .However, keeping Future scalable 

requirements, We are building Hyperscale DC Campus 

of IT Power 55  MW  can accommodate about 7000 

Racks and Facility power 90 MW in Mahape, Navi 

Mumbai. This facility is about 8 kms away from the 

proposed DC facility and will be interconnected on a 

high capacity fibre.Hope NPCI is fine with the same , 

Kindly accept and confirm . 70 racks to 200 rack scalability.

126 110 EOI 34

Annexure I - 

Technical 

Specifications 

clause 2.1 

Pl. Refer Layout

proposed

Please share the proposed layout as same is not part 

of the EOI documents . Will share the during RFP.

127 111 EOI 34 Annexure I - Technical Specifications clause 3.1

Whether Dual power feed of 6 KVA (rated) is 

provided for each rack. 

Please clarify the per rack power requirement as in 

clause no 4.3 "Power Supply Requirements" asked for 

8KW each rack .Kindly confirm the power 

requirement for each rack is 8 KW or 6 KW , and 

whether it is rated power or consumed power . Kindly 

confirm . Please refer Sr.No.64

128 112 EOI 12 Environmental Control/Protection: Point e

Humidity shall be between 50% with ± 5% to avoid 

static electricity. 

We follow ASHRAE guidelines  to keep Relative 

Humidity levels - 50 + - 10 %. Kindly accept & 

confirm. no change

129 113 EOI 34 Civil Requirements: Point no 2.2

The load bearing capacity of the Data Centre should 

be 1500 sq m. 

The load bearing capacity of the proposed  Data 

Centre is 1200 KG /sq m which is sufficient to hold 

high density rack . Request to please kindly accept 

the same . Please refer Sr.No.8



130 114 EOI 11 Civil Requirements :Point no 8

The Data Centre floor should have 2.6 to 3 mts. clear 

height (false floor to false ceiling) 

We have 2.3 mts clear height where customer can 

deploy rack of size 48 U .we request you to please 

amend the clause and Kindly confirm . no change

131 115 EOI

The data centre facility should contain de-

humidifiers to keep humidity to a minimum. The de-

humidifiers in the data centre should be monitored 

and maintained on a regular basis. 

We have inbuilt hearters inside the floor PAHU units 

which helps us to limit/control the DC hall humidity 

thus , de-humidifier are not require as per our 

cooling design . Kindly accept & confirm. ok

132 116 EOI 12 Security and Access Control : Point no 5

All equipment delivery and removal from the Data 

Centre shall be recorded and should be available for 

review by NPCI within six business hours. Need more Clarification .

All the Asset movement of NPCI 

should be recorded.

133 117 EOI 40 Annexure I - Technical Specifications . General point no 8.25

The Data Centre space as per the scope of work and 

terms shall be handed over to NPCI within 4 weeks 

from the date of Purchase Order 

Depending upon Scope of work  , we can deliver 

space and power as per the requirement on day 1 in  

4-5 weeks and for structured cabling and migration 

setup require  8-10 weeks . Kindly confirm. 8 weeks

134 118 EOI 34 Annexure I - Technical Specifications .  Power Supply Requirements Point 3.6

Whether all power feeds are protected from 

brownout, spike & surge by Uninterrupted Power 

Supply, with capacity to supply stable power up to 2 

hours. 

We have voltage monitoring relay installed at Our 

Utility Main power supply distribution level to 

monitor Electricity Board Power supply parameters 

such as Voltage sags, spikes, below threshold values, 

if the Power parameters are going beyond Threshold 

then Auto command will be given to DG Sets to supply 

normal utility power. During this changeover from 

Electricity Board power supply to DG Power UPS will 

continuously deliver stable output with the available 

battery back up of 10 mins. 10 mins back up

135 119 EOI 39 Annexure I - Technical Specifications . Service Levels: Point 7.12Incident Reporting within 15 mins for both SA, ST & NSA For SA- 15 min and for NSA 30 Min, to be removed

136 120 EOI 41 Annexure I - Technical Specifications . General point no 8.27Is the Data Center certified? If yes by EPI or UTI 

We have TIA 942 certificate for the proposed facility  

, request to kindly accept the same. TIA is accepted

137 121 EOI 41 Annexure I - Technical Specifications . General point no 8.32Is the Data Center is Certified by DoT OSP services 

The Mention certification is not  applicable for DC 

service provider. Kindly amend. To be removed

138 122

Chapter 3

Scope of work

9 & 11Clause (a) & 4.2 (2)

An exclusive contiguous core data center area of 

3000 sq.ft with cage and exclusive access. Hosting 

area should be excluding pillar area, PDUs, PAHUs 

etc., if any present in the cage area. 

A Minimum of 33 sq. ft. gross per rack should be 

considered while making any provisioning.

As per Clause 3(a)  & 4.2 (2), the physical racks 

derived( 3000/33 Sqft )would be approx. 90 

Rackspace which will be in a contiguous cage area.

Please confirm if our understanding is correct?

We can meet NPCI requirement of 90 Rackspace in 

a contiguous cage by providing a dedicated floor( 

Dedicated Infra) 

NPCI cscalablity upto 200 racks in 

same area



139 123

Chapter 3

Scope of work

10

Clause (a) of 

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements:

The DCO should provide 42U standard racks 70 Nos. 

scalable up to 200 Nos. Server racks of size 600mm 

wide X 1200 mm depth X 2000 mm Height and 

network racks with 800mm wide X 1200 mm depth X 

2000 mm Height as and when required by NPCI on 

rental basis.

We understand out of 90 Rackspace 70 would be 

Server racks of 600mm X 1200 mm & balance would 

be Network racks with 800 X 1200mm.

Please confirm if our understanding is correct ?

In the event, more than 90 Rackspace are required 

for scalability standpoint going up to 200 Nos., We 

offer additional racks on the next floor and via core 

cut /dedicated shaft for interconnect cables 

treating it as contiguous space without any floor-

level impact . No change

140 124

4.3 Power 

Supply 

Requirements 11 & 34 

4.3 Power Supply 

Requirements

& 

Annexure I - 

Technical 

Specifications

Dual power feed of 8 KW is required for each rack. 

                                                    & 

Whether Dual power feed of 6 KVA (rated) is 

provided for each rack.

The power supply requirement mentioned in Chapter 

4 Technical Details on Page number 11 is different 

from the power supply requirement mentioned in the 

Techincal specification. 

Our understanding is 8 KW per rack is a typo error 

and the contracted power will be 6 KVA rated per 

rack ( overall 540 KVA rated or 270 KW consumed 

power for 90 Racks with a minimum commit of 120 

KW ).

Please confirm if our understanding is correct ?

Please refer Sr.No.64

141 125

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements:

11 Clause (g)

Each power distribution unit (iPDU) inside the rack 

should provide 32A dual output sockets either single 

phase or Three phase.  Out of 90 Racks ,please share the count of racks 

require 3 Phase &  Single phase All 3 phase 

142 126

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements:

11 Clause (e)

The Bidder should provide with automatic STS (Static 

Transfer Switch) wherever required inside the rack 

with dual inputs from both the feeds with 32A 

capacity for equipment having single power supply.

 Out of 90 Racks, Please share the count of racks 

that require STS. 20 Nos. standard 

143 127

4.3 Power 

Supply 

Requirements 11

4.3 Power Supply 

Requirements

All power feed must be protected from brownout, 

spike & surge by Uninterrupted Power Supply, with 

capacity to supply stable power up to 2 hours after 

power failure.

In the details of the power supply requirement 

mentioned in the Technical specification it is 

mentioned Battery backup is available for 13 min. DG 

Setup can supply power for 24 hours in case if any 

Mains outage.

Our understanding is we need to provide UPS Battery 

backup of 13 mins with DG fuel backup of 24 hours. 

Please confirm if our understanding is correct ? 10 mins back up



144 128

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements:

11 Clause (d)

Cabling to each rack should be bus bar trunking 

system with track way bus arrangement.

We will able to meet the dual power feed 

requirement with cabling from each source PDU till 

the rack and PDUs have BCMS ( Branch circuit 

monitoring system) to monitor the power. 

Is it acceptable to NPCI ? 

This is an expensive component and in case it is a 

mandatory requirement, we need to pass this cost 

under NRC ( Non reccuring charges). not acceptable

145 129

Chapter 3

Scope of work

9,10,11,12

clause (e)

 and 4.4 Security 

and Access Control

24 x 7 x 365 operations area for 25 members with 

workstations facing the wall, place to install 

minimum 6 nos. of LCD 85” monitors within the Data 

Centre operation area premises for equipment 

monitoring and operations. One cabin with at least 5 

seated meeting rooms with 2 Nos. of big storewel 

cupboard and 1 no storeroom. There should be space 

for setting up a video conferencing facility and a 

fireproof safe. There should be a facility for a 

minimum of 4 data and 2 voice ports per 

workstation. The DC operations area should be on 

the same floor/building as the Data Centre.

&&

Proximity card readers are required to access the 

NPCI operations area (25 seater) as well as cabin area 

(2 seater). Video coverage is required for the same 

said operations area.

Our understanding is we need to provide the 

following : 

1)   25 seater operation area with counter type 

seating provision & and space to install 6 Nos of 85 

"LCD monitors procured  by NPCI 

. 

2)  5 seater Meeting room with 2 Nos of big storewel 

cupboard & provision of space to install video 

conferencing equipment procured by NPCI in the 

same meeting room. 

3) Approx 100 Sqft of store room area with provision 

to install Fireproof safe procured by NPCI . 

Please confirm if our understanding is correct.  

Also please confirm if 2 seater cabin area is 

required. Yes

146 130

Chapter 3

Scope of work

10 clause (i)

NPCI has its own exclusive service providers. 

Permission should be granted for MUX placement, 

termination of links and for internal connectivity to 

these service providers at no extra cost to NPCI.

NPCI's service provider if not already present in our 

MMR can take space and Power from us to keep their 

MUX devices. This will be chargeable to the service 

provider and no extra charges will be levied on NPCI 

for this.

Please confirm if our understanding is correct ? your understanding is correct

149 131

Server and 

Network Racks 

Requirements:

10 Clause (b)

All Racks should be certified according to ISO 9001, 

14001, and 18001. Complying with EIA 310,

DIN 41494, and IEC 297 standards

ISO 9001, 14001and 18001 does not apply to Racks as 

a product. 

ok

150 132

4.5 Network and 

Communication 

Facilities

13 Clause -1

The Data Centre Facility proposed should be 

equipped with CAT-6A and Fibre cables with 

structured cabling facility.

Please share the detailed scope for structured 

cabling along with cabling layout. NPCI will take it up



152 133

Annexure I 

Technical 

Specifications

41 Clause 8.29

Is the Data Center is Certified by ISO 22301:

2012

ISO 22301 refers to Business continuity which is 

effectively required for Disaster recovery. Since we 

are a colocation service provider and provides Space 

and Power only. Customer is responsible to create 

necessary provisions for BCMS or disaster recovery.

Request you to please remove this clause.

No change

153 134

Annexure I 

Technical 

Specifications

41 Clause 8.32 Is the Data Center is Certified by DoT OSP services

Since we are a colocation service provider and does 

not provide any Telecom related services, DoT OSP 

license is not applicable for us.

Request you to please remove this requirement. Accepted

154 135 9 a

An exclusive contiguous core data center area of 

3000 sq.ft with cage and exclusive access. Hosting 

area should be excluding pillar area, PDUs, PAHUs 

etc., if any present in the cage area. Access to the 

Data Centre area should have a biometric and face 

recognition access facility. The hosting area provided 

to NPCI should meet at least Tier 3 level DC 

facilities.

An exclusive contiguous core data center area of 3000 

sq.ft with cage and exclusive access. - This area 

pertains to 70 nos. of Racks. 

Addiitonal capacity reservation for 200 racks shall be 

made available at the time of allotment. no change

155 136 9 Scope of work

The Bidder should provide Data Centre hosting area 

for a period of Five (5) years initially at Mumbai with 

the following facilities

Kindly amend the clause as The Bidder should provide 

Data Centre hosting area for a period of Five (5) years 

initially at Mumbai/ NaviMumbai with the following 

facilities Mumbai/Navi Mumbai only

156 137 9 Scope of work

The DCO should provide 42U standard racks 70 Nos. 

scalable up to 200 Nos. Server racks of size 600mm 

wide X 1200 mm depth X 2000 mm Height and 

network racks with 800mm wide X 1200 mm depth X 

2000 mm Height as and when required by NPCI on 

rental basis.

To prepare a layout, please provide the number of 

600 mm and 800 mm racks ? Please refer no.29

157 138 10 Scope of work

The Bidder should provide with automatic STS (Static 

Transfer Switch) wherever required inside the rack 

with dual inputs from both the feeds with 32A 

capacity for equipment having single power supply. Please provide the number of STS required in total? Please refer Sr.No.57

158 139

EOI -3.Scope of 

Work -Server & 

network 

Requirements 11 3 H

Supported protocols: 

HTTP, HTTPS, SSL, SSH, NTP, TCP/IP v4 und v6, 

DHCP, DNS, NTP, Syslog, SNMP v1, v2c and v3, 

Traps, Modbus/TCP, SMTP, RADIUS, TACACS

Please share specification of Network product so that 

support of these services can be confirmed?

will be mutually discussed with 

successful bidder



159 140 11

Power Consumed by the equipment placed at the 

Data Centre shall be charged to NPCI for a minimum 

consumption of 120 and thereafter at actual as per 

agreed rate and additional power consumption 

certified by NPCI officer.

The data center should monitor power usage on a per 

client basis to ensure that it does not reach 

dangerously high levels. The bidder should bill for 

the actual amount of power used with a minimum 

bill for 120KW.

We understand this states minimum power 

commitment of 120 KW for 70 racks which traslates to 

120 x 24 x 30 = 86400 kwh per month

Consumption beyond this shall be charged at actuals. your understanding is correct

164 141

5.2 Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 15 Existence

The bidder shall have minimum 10 years of 

experience of managing DC colocation services for 

BFSI clients in India or any national critical 

infrastructure as declared by NCIIPC

Request you to please amend the clause as The 

bidder shall have minimum 3 years of experience of 

managing DC colocation services for BFSI clients in 

India or any national critical infrastructure as 

declared by NCIIPC No change

177 142

Chapter 3 Scope 

of work 10 point no (o)

Telephone lines for each workstation and cabins with 

restricted STD/ISD facility should be provided. Any 

telecom service provider should be allowed access to 

provide their equipment for landline setup, at no 

extra cost to NPCI. NPCI will pay only the PRI line 

charges incurred monthly/periodically on actual 

basis.

we allow customers to use mobile phones inside NPCI 

designated  server area and seating area. Kindly 

confirm do we still need to considered telephone 

lines. 

If yes, kindly confirm do we need to consider 1 

connection per seat. no change

179 143

Chapter 4 

Technical 

Details 11

4.2 civil 

requirement ; 

Point no.2

A Minimum of 33 sq. ft. gross per rack should be 

considered while making any provisioning.

We believe, NPCI intention for  this clause is to have 

a clear space  for material movement / man 

movement / hot and cold aisle  as per industry 

standard. 

We will be consider 1200 mm clearance at all side in 

cage along with minimum 2 tile cold aisle and 2 tile 

hot aisle as per TIA 942 - B design recommendations. 

hope that suffice the requirement.

As all DC's design consideration is different, hence 

request you to amend this clause as per above 

recommendation to accommodate required number 

of racks with adequate clear space for man / material 

movement and airflow management no change

185 144

Annexure I - 

Technical 

Specifications 40

General; point no. 

8.25

Whether the Data Center space as per the scope of 

work and terms shall be handed over to NPCI within 4 

weeks from the date of purchase order.

Considering the elaborative scope of work and 

dependencies of third party OEM/ vendor for works 

like cage, racks, PDUs etc , we request you to 

consider handed over timelines as 10 weeks from 

date of purchase order 8 weeks



189 145

Chapter 5 

Definition and 

Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 15

5.2 Eligibility 

Criteria for Bidders

12The DC facility should be BS7799 or ISO 27001 

certified and compliant to PCI DSS standards

The proposed DC facility is operation ready hence we 

can provide undertaking to obtain theISO 27001 

certified and compliant to PCI DSS standards with 6 

months of its operation. For sake of compliance of 

the clause bidder shall provide ISO 27001 certified 

and compliant to PCI DSS standards for adjacent 

floors/ towers within the same premise operated by 

the bidder. Accepted

190 146

Chapter 5 

Definition and 

Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 15

5.2 Eligibility 

Criteria for Bidders

13. DC facility shall be Tier IV/ Tier III certified by 

Uptime Institute or rated 4/rated 3 by TIA 942 or 

equivalent, pls specify

The proposed DC facility is operation ready hence we 

can provide undertaking to obtain the rated 4/rated 3 

by TIA 942 with 6 months of its operation. For sake of 

compliance of the clause bidder shall provide rated 

3/4 by TIA 942 for adjacent floors/ towers within the 

same premise operated by the bidder. Accepted

191 147

8.4 Evaluation 

Outcome 22

1.

Technical 

Evaluation would 

include the 

following: 2. Certifications in Proposed Data Centre – 10%

The proposed DC facility is operation ready hence we 

can provide undertaking to obtain the ISO 27001 

certified and compliant to PCI DSS standards 

alongwith  rated 4/rated 3 by TIA 942 with 6 months 

of its operation. For sake of compliance of the clause 

bidder shall provide ISO 27001 certified and 

compliant to PCI DSS standards ,  rated 4/rated 3 by 

TIA 942 for adjacent floors/ towers within the same 

premise operated by the bidder. Accepted

148 EOI Doc. 9 3(a)

Chapter 3 Scope of work

a) An exclusive contiguous core data center area of 3000 sq.ft with 

cage and exclusive access. Hosting area should be excluding pillar 

area, PDUs, PAHUs etc., if any present in the cage area. Access to 

the Data Centre area should have a biometric and face recognition 

access facility. The hosting area provided to NPCI should meet at 

least Tier 3 level DC facilities.

Request NPCI to consider the required rack space and 

cage areas only instead of mentioning minimum Sq.ft 

area No change

149 EOI Doc. 9 3(e)

Chapter 3 Scope of work

e) 24 x 7 x 365 operations area for 25 members with workstations 

facing the wall, place to install minimum 6 nos. of LCD 85” 

monitors within the Data Centre operation area premises for 

equipment monitoring and operations. One cabin with at least 5 

seated meeting room with 2 Invitation for Expression of Interest 

for Hiring space for setting up of new Data Centre on Colocation 

model.

Nos. of big storewel cupboard and 1 no storeroom. There should 

be space for setting up a video conferencing facility and fireproof 

safe. There should be a facility for a minimum of 4 data and 2 

voice ports per workstation. The DC operations area should be in 

the same floor / building as the Data Centre.

The proposed facility already has central BMS/CCTV 

rooms to ensure 24x7 monitoring of the critical/non 

critical areas. We request NPCI to please reconsider 

the required seating area requirement/LED displays 

etc. as this would be not required logically. 

Also, request NPCI to provide flexibility on DC 

Operations area requirement, as in some cases it 

would not be possible to provide on same floor/same 

building. 

These workstations are required for 

NPCI DC Operations team. These 

teams needs to have the monitoring 

dashboard w.r.to the NPCI servers



150 EOI Doc. 10 3(i)

Chapter 3 Scope of work

i) NPCI has its own exclusive service providers. Permission should 

be granted for MUX placement, termination of links and for 

internal connectivity to these service providers at no extra cost to 

NPCI.

We can provide the space for NPCI's exclusive service 

provider to install Mux, however, for any connectivity 

related cost, the same needs to be discussed and 

agreed mutually. 

DCO should have MUX facility 

present for top 4 telecom services 

providers (TCL, Airtel,Sify & 

Jio).We will share the required 

bandwidth capacity required as 

part of limited RFP in due 

course.The bidders are expected to 

confirm available capacity in 

response to the limited RFP.

151 EOI Doc. 10 3(k)

Chapter 3 Scope of work

k) There should not be restriction or costs raised for placement of 

antenna / dish or wireless equipment on terrace.

We suggest any cost and feasibility related to 

antenna placement to be mutually discussed and 

agreed. 

Your understanding is correct. 

Necessary cost will be sought as a 

part of limited RFP in due 

course.This will be part of 

corrigendum.

152 EOI Doc. 20 7.2

7.2 EMD

Return of EMD

EMDs furnished by all unsuccessful Bidders will be returned on 

shortlisting of successful Bidders at the end of EOI process.

As per "Chapter2 Project Objective " in Page No. 9, "The 

identified bidders through this EOI shall receive the detailed and 

specified RFP  for hiring of space for Dedicated Data Centre site 

Infrastructure for NPCI "

This indicates two procurement stages at EOI and RFP levels. Post 

EOI process, NPCI is going to float RFP to all successful Bidders. In 

such case what will happen to the 1st EMD submitted by successful 

Bidders? Whether you will carry forward the 1st EMD to RFP stage 

or you will return the 1st EMD and ask to submit a new EMD at RFP 

stage.

If the EMD is paid in form of money 

transfer it can be extended to the 

limited RFP in due course.However, 

if it is paid in form of BG with a 

validity less than or equal to 6 

months extended or fresh BG will 

be required in response to limited 

RFP in due course.

153 EOI Doc. 20 7.3

7.3 Forfeiture of EMD

The EMD made by the bidder will be forfeited if:

1. Bidder withdraws its bid before opening of the bids.

2. Bidder withdraws its bid after opening of the bids but before 

Notification of Award.

3. Selected Bidder withdraws its bid.

4. Bidder violates any of the provisions of the EOI.

As per "Chapter2 Project Objective " in Page No. 9, "The 

identified bidders through this EOI shall receive the detailed and 

specified RFP  for hiring of space for Dedicated Data Centre site 

Infrastructure for NPCI "

This indicates two procurement stages at EOI and RFP levels. A 

shortlisted bidder at EOI stage may not be in position to respond to 

the RFP due to any genuine reasons. In such situation, will NPCI 

forfeit the EMD?

Kindly explain "Notification of Award " mentioned in "2. Bidder 

withdraws its bid after opening of the bids but before Notification 

of Award. "

In continuation to the response to 

Point No.5 where NPCI is not asking 

a separate EMD for limited RFP in 

due course the forfeiture of EMD 

will be as per the clause specified 

and hence no change. 

For the sake of clarity, both EOI 

and limited RFP will be trearted as 

separate transaction for the 

purpose of forfeiture of EMD which 

means if the qualified bidder 

withdraws the bid after responding 

to the limited RFP he may be liablie 

for EMD forfeiture.

.



154 EOI Doc. 20 7.5

7.5 Adherence to terms and conditions:

The Bidders who wish to submit responses to this EOI should note 

that they should abide by all the terms and conditions contained 

in the EOI. If the responses contain any extraneous conditions put 

in by the Bidder/Bidders, such responses will be disqualified and 

will not be considered for the selection process.

Request to kindly allow the deviations in case bidders 

want to deviate from any of the text witten in EOI 

document

Other than Pre bid quereies 

submitted and responsed as part of 

Pre bid discussion, no other 

deviations will be entertained.

With respect to the Pre bid queries 

discussed during Pre bid meeting, 

for any change agreed by NPCI will 

become part of corrigendum and 

hence part of EOI while for other 

cases where there is no change 

accepted or agreed by NPCI the EOI 

no deviation will be entertained.

155 EOI Doc. 21 7.7

7.7 Other Terms:

• The Bidder shall indemnify the NPCI from all actions, costs, 

claims, demands, expenses and liabilities, whatsoever, resulting 

from any actual or alleged infringement as aforesaid and at the 

expenses of the Bidder. NPCI shall be defended in the defence of 

any proceedings which may be brought in that connection.

• Project plans, reports, ideas, documentation etc., developed for 

NPCI by the Bidder, while submitting the EOI response, shall be 

the property of the NPCI, unless otherwise agreed upon explicitly 

in writing.

Please clarify what 'aforesaid' signifies. We trust that 

the infringement mentioned is for claims of 

infringement of a third party's intellectual property 

rights. Please confirm. 

This clause is referred to IPR rights 

and infringement in case of any 

software development.For further 

clarity we will disucss the limited 

RFP.

156 EOI Doc. 22 8.4

8.4 Evaluation Outcome

1. Technical Evaluation would include the following:

Scoring weightage

5. Client References (BFSI & Hyper scalar) – 10%

As per the NDA signed with most of our clients, 

especially the Hypersacalers, we are strictly bound to 

keep each and every information very confidential 

including their names. Hence we request to allow the 

bidders to submit a self-declaration signed by 

Authorized signatory to comply with this 

requirement.

Self declaration will suffice and a 

format will be shared as part of 

corrigendum.

157 EOI Doc. 25 Annexure A2

Annexure A2 - Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)

(a) Has withdrawn its Bid during the period of bid validity 

specified by the Bidder in the Form of Bid; or

(b) having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by NPCI 

during the period of bid validity,

Bid Validity is not given in EoI Document. Without Bid 

Validity date Banks cannot fix the BG validity. Kindly 

let the bidders know the Bid Validity Date. 6 months

158 EOI Doc. 29 Annexure E

Annexure E - Declaration for Acceptance of EOI Terms and 

Conditions

(Bidder’s Letter Head)

Request to kindly allow the bidders to add 

deviations/assumptions in case bidders want to 

deviate from any of the text witten in EOI document Refer Point No.7

159 EOI Doc. 31 Annexure G
Annexure G - Format Power of Attorney

(On Stamp paper of relevant value)

Kindly allow to submit the Board Resolution which is more 

authentic than the Power of Attorney Acceptable

160 EOI Doc. 32 Annexure H

Annexure H Eligibility Criteria Response

A] Pre -Requisite Qualifications and compliance

2. Existence

The bidder shall have minimum 10 years of experience of 

managing DC colocation services for BFSI clients in India or any 

national critical infrastructure as declared by NCIIPC

Declaration on company letter head signed by CEO/ COO

Kindly allow the declarations signed by Authorized 

signatory instead of CEO/COO

Acceptable only supported by Board 

resolution. 



161 EOI Doc. 32 Annexure H

Annexure H Eligibility Criteria Response

A] Pre -Requisite Qualifications and compliance

3. Financial

C. Positive net worth for every year for last 3 years

D. No statutory default during last 3 years

CA certificate from current statutory auditor

Our accounts are audited by the auditors as per 

law/jurisdiction. Balance Sheets and Profit&Loss 

statements are signed by all company representatives 

including the Auditor.

Hence we request you to kindly accept Balance 

Sheets and Profit&Loss statements supported by a 

Self-Delcaration signed by Authorized Signatory 

instead of a CA Certificate.

Self declaration from CFO is 

acceptable for EOI as well as RFP 

for which the format will be  

shared as part of corrigendum.

162 EOI Doc. 32 Annexure H

Annexure H Eligibility Criteria Response

A] Pre -Requisite Qualifications and compliance

4. Blacklisting/ Clean track record

The Bidder should not have been currently blacklisted/debarred 

by any Bank or institution in India or abroad.

Declaration on company letter head signed by CEO/ COO/ CFO

Kindly allow the declarations signed by Authorized 

signatory instead of CEO/COO/CFO

Acceptable only supported by Board 

resolution. 

163 EOI Doc. 32 Annexure H

Annexure H Eligibility Criteria Response

A] Pre -Requisite Qualifications and compliance

11. Colocation services shall be managed by the bidder himself 

and not outsourced

Declaration on company letter head signed by CEO/ COO

Kindly allow the declarations signed by Authorized 

signatory instead of CEO/COO

Acceptable only supported by Board 

resolution. 

164

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 32

Pre -Requisite 

Qualifications and 

compliance Turnover of Rs. 500 Cr every year for last 3 years

Request for following change:

Option 1 :

Financials of either of Merging company/ parent / JV partner/ 

group company shall be considered (only relevant Datacenter 

revenues)

Option 2 : 

Average turnover of more than Rs 75 Cr. For last 3 financial years

Turnover of bidding company only 

will be considered. No 

parent/JV/subsidary with to 

turnover threshold will respond 

through corrigendum.

165

EOI Reference 

No: 

NPCI/EOI/2023-

24/IT/04 dated 

13.02.2024. 15

5.2.2 Eligibility 

Criteria for Bidders

The bidder shall have minimum 10 years of 

experience of managing DC colocation services for 

BFSI clients in India or any national critical 

infrastructure as declared by NCIIPC

Kindly modify this to minimum 5 years in line with 

clause 5.2.1

Will addressed through 

corrigendum

166

5.2 Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 15 Financial Profitable for last 3 years

Kindly amend the clause as Profitable (EBBITDA) for 

last 2 years

No change, however exception will 

be considered for COVID year.

167

5.2 Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 15 Financial Turnover of Rs.500 Cr every year for last 3 years

Request you to please amend the clause as Average 

annual Turnover must be Rs.60 Cr  for last 3 years   OR         

Request you to please consider Turnover of Group companies.

Turnover of bidding company only 

will be considered. No 

parent/JV/subsidary with to 

turnover threshold will respond 

through corrigendum.

168

5.2 Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 15 Financial Positive net worth for every year for last 3 years

Please amend the clause as Positive net worth in the last 

financial year i.e. FY 2022-23  

 *Note: Net worth as per Ind-AS - 32 of accounting standards as 

notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013.

Networth  of bidding company only 

will be considered. No 

parent/JV/subsidary with to 

turnover threshold will respond 

through corrigendum.

169

5.2 Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 25

Location, 

ownership and DC 

facility Building and DC facility shall be owned by the bidder

Please amend the claause as Building and DC facility 

shall be owned/Leased by the bidder No change



170

Chapter 5 

Definition and 

Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 15

5.2 Eligibility 

Criteria for Bidders

2. The bidder shall have minimum 10 years of 

experience of managing DC colocation services for 

BFSI clients in India or any national critical 

infrastructure as declared by NCIIPC

We have under gone restructuring of the company 

business resulting in formation of wholly owned 

subsidary for conducting "Digital Business", 

operational from July 2020. Hence we request to 

consider conpliance with Experiance and existance of 

the company clauses with the credentials of Bidder's 

Parent company. 

Request to consider addition of following clause as 

NOTE:
 a. In-case of corporate restructuring the earlier entity’s 

incorporation certificate, financial statements, Credentials, etc. 

may be considered.

b. In case of business transfer where Bidder has acquired a 

Business from an entity (“Seller”), work experience credentials 

of the Seller in relation to the acquired business may be 

considered.

OR

Consider modification of the clause as:

2. The bidder or Bidder's parent company (Incase bidder is 

wholly owned subsidairy of its parent company) shall have 

minimum 10 years of experience of managing DC colocation 

services for BFSI clients in India or any national critical 

infrastructure as declared by NCIIPC-----Declaration on company 

letter head signed by CEO/ COO/ Company Secretary/Authorized 

signatory

Will addressed through 

corrigendum

171

Chapter 5 

Definition and 

Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 15

5.2 Eligibility 

Criteria for Bidders

5. Land shall be either owned by the bidder or 

availed on 99 years lease from any Govt authority

Request to modify the clause as:

5. Land shall be either owned by the bidder or 

availed on 75 years lease from any Govt authority

Will addressed through 

corrigendum

172

Chapter 5 

Definition and 

Eligibility 

Criteria for 

Bidders 15

5.2 Eligibility 

Criteria for Bidders

11. Colocation services shall be managed by the 

bidder himself and not outsourced-------------------

Declaration on company letter head signed by CEO/ 

COO

Request to modify the clause as:

11. Colocation services shall be managed by the 

bidder himself and not outsourced-------------------

Declaration on company letter head signed by CEO/ 

COO/ Company Secretary/Authorized signatory

Acceptable only supported by Board 

resolution. 

173

8.4 Evaluation 

Outcome 22

1.

Technical 

Evaluation would 

include the 

following: 5. Client References (BFSI & Hyper scalar) – 10%

Since we the bidding company is hivedoff for its 

parent company and is operational from 2020 only. 

The bidding entity will be dependent on its parent 

company of complying with eligibility and technical 

evaluation clauses for experiance and existance. we 

request to also consider experience / client 

references of its parent company as the bidding 

company is 100% ownes subsidairy of its parent 

company with same core management team. 

Self declaration will suffice and a 

format will be shared as part of 

corrigendum.


